
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

  AGENDA 
OCTOBER 21, 11:30 AM 
 
 

 
I. Welcome         

 
II. Approval of Minutes      

A. *September Board Meeting      p. 3  
 

III. *Financial Report        p. 5 
 

IV. Committee Report - Marketing      p. 13 
 

V. Staff Report        p. 38 
 

VI. Old Business  
 

VII. New Business  
 

VIII. Public Forum 
 

IX. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* Denotes action items 
 
Upcoming Meetings: 

November 18, 11:30 am – Board Meeting 
December 16, 11:30 am - Board Meeting 

 
This meeting, and all communications between Board Members, are subject 

to the provisions of the Tennessee Open Meetings Act. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 
  MINUTES  

SEPTEMBER 16, 2024, 11:30 AM 
  
The Board of Directors of Downtown Knoxville Alliance met on Monday, September 16, 2024,  
at 11:30 am at 17 Market Square, Knoxville, TN.  
 
Board members present included Mary Katherine Wormsley, chair, Chip Barry, Natalea 
Cummings, Nikki Elliott, Gay Lyons, Bobby McCarter, and Blaine Wedekind. DKA and 
Knoxville Chamber staff in attendance included:  Callie Blackburn, Michele Hummel, Karen 
Kakanis, and Angela Lunsford. 
 
I. Welcome 

  
Mary Katherine Wormsley called the meeting to order.  
 

II. Minutes 
 
Mary Katherine Wormsley called for the minutes from the August board meeting to be 
approved. Natalea Cummings made a motion to approve the minutes. Gay Lyons 
seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved by the board.  

  
III. Equalization Process for Property Taxes from the City of Knoxville 

 
Boyce Evans described the process the City goes through to develop a Certified Tax Rate 
(equalization process) for city property taxes after the county assesses property.  DKA’s 
assessment is not part of this equalization process.   
 
If DKA were to adjust the tax rate, it would require a change with City Council and a 
public meeting.  
 
DKA could adjust the rate to coincide with the Certified Tax Rate and any property tax 
adjustments.  Mr. Evans shared a table showing what DKA’s assessment rate would be if 
DKA followed the city’s certified rate.  DKA’s assessment rate would be at .25 compared to 
the .32 as it currently stands.  Each cent of the assessment rate is approximately $31,000.  
If the rate was changed to .25 DKA’s assessments would be down by $215,000 this year. 

 
IV. Financials 

 
Angela Lunsford delivered the report for the corporation explaining the various reports.  
Nikki Elliott made a motion to approve the financial report, and Blaine Wedekind 
seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved by the board. 
 

V. Staff Report 
 
Staff presented their report, which provided an update on activities from the previous 
month. The full reports were included in the agenda packet.  
 
 
 



VI. Old Business  
 

The Board needs to make recommendations for KTA Board to represent DKA’s interest at 
the next board meeting. 
 

VII. New Business  
 

There was no Old Business. 
 
VIII. Public Forum 
 

There was no Public Forum. 
 
IX. Adjournment 

 
With no other business, the meeting was adjourned.  

 
           
     Secretary   



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal YTD September 30, 2024

Jul '24 - Jun '25
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (44,769)
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

1110 · Other Receivable 61,102 
2020 · Accounts Payable (1,705) 
2600 · Accrued Payables (1,250) 
2700 · Accrued Wages - 

      1350 - Prepaid Expenses 13,194.66
Net cash provided by Operating Activities 26,572 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

3900 · Change in NA - unrestricted - 
Net cash provided by Financing Activities - 
Net cash increase for period 26,572 
Cash at beginning of period 1,556,077            
Cash at end of period 1,582,650           

Current Liabilities (5,495) 

Accrued Payables (1,058,520) 

Accounts receivable and Other 5,530 
Prepaid Expenses 75 

Subtotal (1,058,410)          

Projected Remaining Budgeted Income (Expenses)

Revenue 1,046,214            
Development (115,000) 
Quality of Life (334,946) 
Business Support (49,705) 
Marketing/Sponsorships (224,219) 
Administration (205,253) 

Subtotal 117,091              

Projected Cash - Before Minimum Reserve 641,331              

Minimum Cash Balance - Reserve (150,000) 
Projected Cash Availability 491,331              



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal YTD September 30, 2024

Project Grants Permit Date Comp Date Accrued YE 6/30/2024 Total

314 Union Ave (COK) 250,000 9/30/2022 0 0
YWCA Keys of Hope 250,000 6/30/2024 0 0
Tennessee Theatre 300,000 6/30/2024 0 0
Art & Cultural Alliance 200,000 6/30/2024 0 0

1,000,000 0 0
* City approval required

Note: Farragut Building/Hyatt Place, 530 S. Gay Street
In 2015, DKA Board agreed to receive $4,578 and abate the increased incremental assessments during the project's 25-year PILOT term 
which ends 3/17/41.
Note:  Marble Alley/formerly Knox County property, 300 State Street 
In 2013, Knox County Commission and Knox County IDB approved a 10-year PILOT for Marble Alley Lofts. Knox County previously held 
this property and was tax-exempt; therefore they did not pay property taxes or DKA assessments. PILOT term ends 12/31/25
Note:  Church + Henley formerly State Supreme Court, 700 Henley Street
In 2019, DKA approved a 10-year abatement of the incremental assessment for the State Supreme Court project starting 48 months after 
developers close on the two parcels to allow for construction and project stabilization.  DKA will continue to receive assessments for both 
properties based on the acquisition cost.  DKA’s assessment is expected to be approx. $3,208 during the abatement time.  The City’s 25 
year PILOT term ends 3/4/48.  The property closed on 9/30/19.  DKA’s abatement ends 9/30/2033.



Dow
ntow

n Knoxville A
lliance

Profit & Loss A
ctual vs Budget A

ugust 31, 2024
A

cct #
Jul 24

A
ug 24

Sep 24
TO

TA
L

FY25 Budget
Rem

ainder
Incom

eC
BID Tax A

ssessm
ents

4020
6,239

         
66,631

       
5,530

         
78,400

          
1,125,000

          
1,046,600

    
Investm

ent incom
e

4100
2,799

         
2,924

         
2,662

         
8,386

            
8,000
 

(386)
             

Total Incom
e

9,038
         

69,556
       

8,192
         

86,786
         

1,133,000
         

1,046,214
    

Expenses
Developm

ent
Path to Prosperity

5225
-

             
-

             
-

             
- 

15,000
               

15,000
          

Special Projects
5205

-
             

-
             

-
             

- 
100,000

             
100,000

       
Total Developm

ent
-

            
-

            
-

            
- 

115,000
            

115,000
       

Q
uality of Life

Beautification
5659

81
              

80
              

84
              

245
               

70,000
               

69,755
          

A
m

bassador Program
5657

9,676
         

9,676
         

9,676
         

29,029
          

117,000
             

87,971
          

Residential - O
ther

5900
- 

Residential
5901

-
             

-
             

-
             

- 
3,000
 

3,000
            

Trash C
om

pactor
5662

-
             

-
             

-
             

- 
75,000

               
75,000

          
O

pen Street A
ctivation

5663
-

             
-

             
-

             
- 

10,000
               

10,000
          

Security
5655

3,080
         

5,225
         

2,475
         

10,780
          

100,000
             

89,220
          

Total Q
uality of Life

12,837
       

14,981
       

12,235
       

40,054
         

375,000
            

334,946
       

Business Support
Business Support

5150
1,274

         
(979)
 

-
295

               
50,000

               
49,705

          
Total Business Support

1,274
         

(979)
- 

295
              

50,000
              

49,705
         

M
arketing Expenses

A
dvertising G

eneral
5305

2,464
         

1,950
         

1,800
         

6,214
            

50,000
               

43,786
          

Print and C
ontent Developm

ent
5306

798
            

802
            

3,187
         

4,787
            

55,000
               

50,213
          

W
ebsite - A

ll C
om

m
ittees

5375
550

            
1,430

         
550

            
2,530

            
30,000

               
27,470

          
Dow

ntow
n Scavenger Hunt

5364
6,250

         
6,250

            
20,000

               
13,750

          
Brand Refinem

ent
Events and Sponsorship

5360
21,000

       
-

             
-

             
21,000

          
110,000

             
89,000

          
Total M

arketing Expenses
24,812

       
4,182

         
11,787

       
40,781

         
265,000

            
224,219

       

A
dm

inistration
M

eals/ Lodging/ Travel
5420

-
             

-
             

945
            

945
               

6,000
 

5,055
            

O
ffice Expense

5430
625

            
923

            
1,830

         
3,377

            
7,500
 

4,123
            

Bank Fees
5435

-
             

-
             

-
             

-  
200
 

200
               

Postage
5440

17
              

34
              

15
              

66  
2,500
 

2,434
            

Professional Dev.
5465

-
             

-
             

3,443
         

3,443
            

6,000
 

2,557
            

Professional Svc
5450

-
4,000

2,206
         

6,206
            

12,000
               

5,794
            

Svc C
ontract - O

perations
5460

20,348
       

20,348
20,348

       
61,044

          
244,173

             
183,129

       
Insurance Directors/O

fficers
5750

75
              

75
              

75
              

225
               

900
 

675
               

Softw
are

5480
69

              
69

              
75

              
213

               
1,500
 

1,287
            

Supplies
5470

-
             

-
             

-
             

- 
- 

- 
Total A

dm
inistration

21,133
       

25,449
       

28,938
       

75,520
         

280,773
            

205,253
       

Total Expenses
60,055

       
43,633

       
52,961

       
156,649

       
1,085,773

         
929,124

       

C
hange in N

A
V

(51,017)
     

25,922
       

(44,769)
     

(69,864)
       

47,227
              

(117,091)
     



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Statement of Cash Flows

September 2024

    

TOTAL

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income -44,768.69

Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:

1110 Other Receivable 61,101.73

1350 Prepaid Expenses 13,194.66

2020 Acc. Payable:Accounts Payable -1,705.23

2600 Accrued Payables -1,250.00

Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 71,341.16

Net cash provided by operating activities $26,572.47

NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD $26,572.47

Cash at beginning of period 1,556,077.39

CASH AT END OF PERIOD $1,582,649.86



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Profit and Loss
September 2024

  

TOTAL

Income

4020 CBID Assessment 5,529.60

4100 Interest on Cash Reserves 2,662.33

Total Income $8,191.93

GROSS PROFIT $8,191.93

Expenses

5300 Marketing Expenses

5305 Advertising 1,800.00

5306 Print and Content Development 3,187.16

5364 Downtown Scavenger Hunt 6,250.00

5375 Website 550.00

Total 5300 Marketing Expenses 11,787.16

5400 Administration

5420 Meals/Lodging/Travel 945.15

5430 Office Expenses 1,829.60

5440 Postage 15.18

5450 Professional Svc 2,206.49

5460 Services Contract 20,348.00

5465 Professional Dev. 3,443.32

5480 Software 75.38

5490 Insurance D&O 75.00

Total 5400 Administration 28,938.12

5650 Quality of Life

5655 Bike Patrol 2,475.00

5657 Ambassador Program 9,676.32

5659 Beautification 84.00

Total 5650 Quality of Life 12,235.32

Total Expenses $52,960.60

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -44,768.67

NET INCOME $ -44,768.67



Total
ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

         1000 Cash & Cash Equiv. 0.00  

            1014 First Bank ICS 734,493.24  

            1020 Investments - Cert Dep and MM

1022 FirstBank CD 0680 96,075.51  

1036 Home Federal CD 2895 245,791.89  

1037 First Century CD 0328 256,981.97  

1038 Truist CD 6084 249,307.25  

            Total 1020 Investments - Cert Dep and MM $ 848,156.62  

         Total 1000 Cash & Cash Equiv. $ 1,582,649.86  

      Total Bank Accounts $ 1,582,649.86  

      Accounts Receivable

         1110 Other Receivable 5,529.60  

      Total Accounts Receivable $ 5,529.60  

      Other Current Assets

         1350 Prepaid Expenses 75.00  

      Total Other Current Assets $ 75.00  

   Total Current Assets $ 1,588,254.46  

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,588,254.46  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

            2000 Acc. Payable 0.00  

2020 Accounts Payable 5,494.78  

            Total 2000 Acc. Payable $ 5,494.78  

         Total Accounts Payable $ 5,494.78  

         Other Current Liabilities

            2600 Accrued Payables 1,058,519.99  

         Total Other Current Liabilities $ 1,058,519.99  

      Total Current Liabilities $ 1,064,014.77  

   Total Liabilities $ 1,064,014.77  

   Equity

      3900 Change in NA - unrestricted 594,103.57  

      Net Income -69,863.88

   Total Equity $ 524,239.69  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 1,588,254.46  

Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2024



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
A/P Aging Detail

As of September 30, 2024

    

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM VENDOR DUE DATE PAST DUE AMOUNT OPEN BALANCE

1 - 30 days past due

09/25/2024 Bill DK-INV-000013 Ciris Content 09/25/2024 20 1,200.00 1,200.00

Total for 1 - 30 days past due $1,200.00 $1,200.00

Current

09/30/2024 Bill INV012671 Knoxville Chamber 10/01/2024 14 62.85 62.85

09/30/2024 Bill 09302024 Callie Blackburn 10/15/2024 0 491.45 491.45

09/30/2024 Bill 20090707 Designsensory 10/16/2024 -1 550.00 550.00

09/21/2024 Bill INV8766 CrowdRiff Inc. 10/21/2024 -6 1,290.48 1,290.48

09/26/2024 Bill 1797 Moore, Mitch 10/26/2024 -11 100.00 100.00

09/30/2024 Bill DKA-100124 Southern Bloom Social 10/30/2024 -15 1,800.00 1,800.00

Total for Current $4,294.78 $4,294.78

TOTAL $5,494.78 $5,494.78



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
A/R Aging Detail

As of September 30, 2024

  

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM CUSTOMER DUE DATE AMOUNT OPEN BALANCE

Current

09/30/2024 Invoice 04302030 City of Knoxville. 10/31/2024 5,529.60 5,529.60

Total for Current $5,529.60 $5,529.60

TOTAL $5,529.60 $5,529.60



  

MARKETING COMMITTEE MINUTES   

    OCTOBER 21, 2024 | 11:30 AM  
  
  
  
  
 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance board members present included Chip Barry, City of Knoxville. Committee 
members present included Matthew DeBardelaben, Avison Young; Shera Petty, Visit Knoxville; Scott Bird, 
MoxCar Marketing + Communications; Dana Dalton, downtown resident; Heather Albrecht, Bliss; and Lisa 
Allen, PBA WFP. Staff members included Michele Hummel and Callie Blackburn.   
  
Sponsorship Requests  
  

Organization  Event  Request  Recommendation  

Nourish Knoxville 
Charlotte Tolley, CEO 
Ellie Moore, COO 

Winter Famers Market $5,000  $5,000  

Visit Knoxville / Bike Walk Knoxville 
Kim Bumpas, President Tour de Lights  $5,000  $5,000 

Morning Pointe Foundation 
Miranda Perez, Executive Director Seniors Got Talent $5,000  - 

Total   $10,000 

  
 
Recommendation for Board Approval  

 
$10,000 to be approved as outlined above for Event Sponsorships. FY 24-25 budget, summary of events, and 
event applications are attached.   
  
 
Primary discussion points:  
  

Winter Farmers Market – Nourish Knoxville is requesting $5,000 for their Winter Farmers Market. 
These funds will cover continued operational costs, onsite signage, market staffing, KPD fees, and road 
closures.  Recommendation: The committee made a recommendation in the form of a motion to the 
board to fund the request as presented for $5,000. 
 
Tour de Lights – Visit Knoxville is requesting $5,000 for Tour de Lights, in partnership with Bike Walk 
Knoxville. These funds will cover the costs of the road closures for the bike ride, as well as event 
organization and promotion.  Recommendation: The committee made a recommendation in the form 
of a motion to the board to fund the request as presented for $5,000. Shera Petty with Visit Knoxville 
refrained from the motion. 
 
 
 



 
 
Seniors Got Talent – The Morning Pointe Foundation requested $5,000 for their Seniors Got Talent 
event. The requested amount was a fundraising effort, with the funds to be used for student 
scholarships for nursing, occupational therapy, and social workers for East TN colleges, to reduce the 
area’s critical staffing shortages. Recommendation: The committee reviewed the grant application. 
Due to lack of a motion, no recommendation will be recommended to the board. 
 

 
Other Discussion  
  
Katie Spencer, with the Knoxville Opera, is seeking individuals and downtown merchants who are interested 
in serving on the Rossini Festival Committee. If you are interested or know of someone who would be, 
please let Callie know and you will be put into contact.  
  
 
Next Meeting  
  
The next Marketing Committee meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, November 13 at 3:00 PM 



.  



 

 
 

  



 

 

 



  



 
 



  



 
 



 
 

 

 

Marketing plan: 
 
Nourish Knoxville’s commitment to robust marketing strategies is evident through our diverse 
approaches to promoting our markets and programming. With a focus on maximizing our social media 
presence and leveraging partnerships within the community, we ensure effective outreach and 
engagement. Here's an overview of our 2023/2024 Winter Farmers Market (WFM) marketing plan: 
 

Social Media: We maintain active profiles on Instagram (@nourishmarkets) and Facebook to connect 
with our audience. Our content strategy includes regular updates, behind-the-scenes looks, vendor 
spotlights, and market highlights. We use stories and posts to engage followers, create and promote 
Facebook events for market days and special events like Nourish Kids, and leverage Instagram and 
Facebook ads to boost visibility. We also encourage and share user-generated content to further 
enhance engagement. 

Amplified Outreach: The Winter Farmers Market is prominently featured in the East Tennessee Local 
Food Guide, which reaches 31 counties. This guide includes a detailed listing and a market ad, and is 
widely distributed across various community hubs such as retail businesses, grocers, restaurants, and 
healthcare providers. Additionally, we regularly promote the Winter Farmers Market on Nourish 
Knoxville’s Instagram and Facebook accounts to increase regional visibility. 

Strategic Press Engagement: We issue well-crafted press releases for the December and January 
openings, highlighting unique features and events of the market. We also cultivate relationships with 
local media to secure coverage, including live broadcasts and feature articles. Furthermore, we engage 
local bloggers and influencers to include the market in holiday gift guides and post-holiday highlights. 

On-Ground Promotion: At the Market Square Farmers Market in October and November, we use eye-
catching signage and distribute handbills to build anticipation for the Winter Farmers Market. During the 
Winter Farmers Market, we provide brochures and promotional materials at our information booth and 
vendor booths, and extend this distribution to neighboring businesses. We also deploy temporary 
signage during events to highlight sponsors and share crucial market information. Local guides and 
brochures, such as the East Tennessee Local Food Guide and Knox County Farmers Market brochures, 
are prominently available to enhance visibility. 

Kids Programming: We promote free children’s activities scheduled for the 2nd Saturday of each Winter 
Farmers Market through Facebook events, Instagram posts, the Nourish Knoxville event calendar, and 
our monthly e-newsletter, which reaches 13,000 subscribers. Collaborations with community partners 
like Knox County Health Department, Second Harvest of East Tennessee, and Ijams Nature Center help 
enhance these activities and broaden our outreach. 

Collaborative Partner Outreach: We work with organizations such as the Community Action Committee 
(CAC), Knox County Health Department, Knoxville’s Community Development Corporation (KCDC), and 
the Knoxville-Knox County Food Policy Council to promote SNAP, Double Up Food Bucks, and Nourish 
Kids. These partnerships help us engage specific demographics and increase market attendance among 
underserved communities that might not otherwise visit downtown Knoxville. 

Event Engagement: We participate in workplace wellness fairs, community outreach events, and other 
local activities during the winter and spring. These tabling opportunities allow us to engage face-to-face 
with potential marketgoers, share information about the Winter Farmers Market, and promote 
upcoming events. 



 
 

Winter Farmers Market

Jan - 

Apr 

2021         

(8 

dates)

Income

Booth and App Fees $2,545

Grants $1,000

Sponsorships (Grayson & DKA) $3,000

Total Income $6,545

Expense

Accounting Fees $900

Insurance $500

SNAP Expenses

Advertising/Marketing $120

Port-a-johns/Handwashing station

Security

Software/Processing Fees

Supplies $780

Payroll & Benefit Expenses $21,204

Total Expense $23,504

10% Indirect Organizational Costs$2,350

Net Profit/Loss ######



 
 



  



 
 



  



  



 
 



 
 



 
 



 
 



 
 



 
 



  



 
 



 
 


	1 Agenda for Oct
	Board of Directors’ Meeting
	agenda
	October 21, 11:30 am


	Oct_24_Board_Meeting_Packet
	1 Agenda for Oct
	Board of Directors’ Meeting
	agenda
	september 16, 2024, 11:30 am


	2 Minutes from September 2024
	board of directors’ meeting
	minutes
	September 16, 2024, 11:30 am


	3 DKA September 2024 Financial Package
	DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows Page 1 of 3 Sept 2024.pdf
	DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows Page 2 of 3 Sept 2024.pdf
	DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows Page 3 of 3 Sept 2024.pdf
	DKA Balance Sheet 9.30.24.pdf
	Balance Sheet


	3 Marketing Report
	October 2024 Marketing Package (002)
	Sponsorship Requests
	Recommendation for Board Approval
	Other Discussion
	Next Meeting






